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The translation into Chinese language of this annual report is for reference only.
In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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Financial Results and Business Review

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$552.4 million
(2015: HK$532.3 million) and a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$871.4 million (2015: HK$1,290.4 million). Details of the financial results
and business performance and development are set out in the Report of the

Directors on pages 29 to 52.

Business Model and Strategies
The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong. The Group
generates and preserves its value through being an investor in the property

market.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$0.60 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share during the year
(2015: HK$0.60 per share), the total distribution will be HK$1.20 per share
for the year (2015: HK$1.20 per share).
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Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 8 September 2016.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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ISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholdershete and is
therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current internal control
system and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk
of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors
is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from taking out insurance may not
outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is, subject to the provisions of
the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company. In view of the above,

the Board considers that the Directors’ exposure to risk is manageable.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) throughout
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors with differing expertise/calibre who can
provide a “check and balance” effect on the management through their high
attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring a balance of power.
Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of Directors is of the view
that the current structure does not have any adverse effect on the Company
and believes that this structure enables the Group to make and implement

decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does not
pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the disclosure
of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the deputy
chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the deputy chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the deputy chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2016.
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o Board of Directors
REZE-_ZT—"F=ZA=1t—HIBBEE - K The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2016
NRIEFGH THIESHEK - comprised the following Directors:
HITEE Executive Directors

BB E(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)
BBMEE(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
SEIME S E Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

fEpearabotes Mr Cheong Sim Lam

$BIEIS /N Miss Cheong Chong Ling

FHHITEE Non-executive Director

SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
HIIHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEGEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

hEHEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

BINGE Mr Lee Chung

EEEEE (KRR T FMITHAER) - EEMRK Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive of the

SE - EBREBELAENELBEEEH AR - Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong

ERBMEEREBMNEENLR  TIERE Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter of

SoHE - SEMIE S R MR AR SE E R L o SP0EEIR Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,

KGR ERNESHRHA NEBLAIMNIER - Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

RBEEEECRE  EFgAHLA

EEFETJZ]S FAIREEE EEeREEEME) A$ a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
BIEGIETER - RERIER

BL7 ﬂZIS’E B NERRIR EE S&W*B gL leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,

52 o overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and

MAEEZ X Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as

ESr i the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the

management performance, corporate governance and internal control of the

Group.
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#ERME Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are invited
to serve on these Board committees according to the benefits brought by
their participation in view of their individual experience and skills. To assist
the committees in discharging their roles adequately, each committee is
provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines for its members to
follow in the process of decision-making. Duties and authorities of these
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 on a going concern basis, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the
revised accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 58.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one

general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

FBIR—ARERE  FESEHHFELEENOT Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:
HESEAE FEREESRARE
Meetings attended/eligible to attend
Exges BRAE
) Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
EEE LA (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 1/1
EBME A (FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 1/1
ERES Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6 1/1
fepoyealbinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6 1/1
BRI/ MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
FEHTTEF Non-executive Director
HEMRRB e A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 11
BUINTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
HEgEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 1/1
PhEBEAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 11
=N Mr Lee Chung 6/6 1/1

REEZERETEACHUFOMBMLEE
ARREEEEHI - RAFE - ARBRER
FERRLFERTHBE - UEHENSE
ERERNMETEELENANZ - AESEFRE
RIWEEEZENERERTANKMER 2
AWENGERERERIEBEMEEALR
EEeRHEFNEN RBEE_T—XRF=A
ST HUEMBRFE  ARF/EELHEES
BEMETABZABBIRE  IRNSES
SNBSS RN  ARRRBEEFTS
HEARRMIMNEIEIIEE - I E - REMH®
g EFAARABRRNERT  ARFEXN
FrEMRRER -

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates directly or through other professionals
to the Board as and when necessary. During the financial year ended
31 March 2016, the Company organised in-house training courses in relation
to Directors’ duties and responsibilities for the Directors and reviewed the
adequacy of training received by them. The Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums and conferences
on their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the Company, subject
to the Company’s policy.
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Board of Directors (continued)

2016 is set out below:

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March

RARWE
HERRE HMTBAR
e BEAL
ek = HEER AR
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading  other executives/
- Directors conferences materials professionals
HITEFE Executive Directors
BRI S () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N N
SEREL A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N \
iz EodEabtan Mr Cheong Sim Lam N J
RIS/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling N J
FHITEE Non-executive Director
AR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles N N
B HHTTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N N
=Bk AE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam N N
FIRFE Mr Lee Chung v N

it bBAPFREMIEIIEEMNDEES

QEFREMEEAR -

F (DI R AR BIAN

Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules

and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,
Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company in
formulating remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management; to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals; to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”).

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually.
For all other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration
packages on the recommendations of their respective department heads on

an annual basis.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 25 to the financial
statements on page 115, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference
of the committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management; and made recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:
HEEBNE FEREEEENR
54= Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
EREE(ZESLE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
&M%%i Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
=N Mr Lee Chung 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are Mr Cheong
Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow

Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive, and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the

websites of the Company and the HKEx.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that () every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

ZREBLESKNERNFEZ 28T ¢ The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out
below:
HESRAE FERLESRRE
RE Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
EWRIRSE(ZEELE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 3/3
EIEMRE A& Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
=N Mr Lee Chung 3/3
BREEE Audit Committee

ARBERZEENIZEARAEZEHE
£ BNZEENRS aﬁE&hﬂgﬁ?gﬁﬁmthH£¥%§¢ i3
SMNIB R ERED A F BN - S R GRS B IR AT A B ik
EGIEN B EF’%M%E RN
[ZEGIECE VALY &S SR I - e 5 d=0)0 4/ O
B TERAR] - EINEZBEN R HIEE
RGP MET : BIFT RMITHINEZ BN IR
HIFZBRBNEABER - BB B RRHE

FRER R NEREIEGIE - EEARENTEE
B ARRE TERENERTHATRFE
ZAETRAREBINRH  UHRCHEEER
WL HEAMER R FIBIL N RAE R RETE + £
BERAQREMNEZBEBERZEERR K
R ZERHBERE YMESSFEHES -
EizZ B o B E O 5 A0 R AT B A
B WEBEHRANRRI RS -

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEXx.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee

Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the audit committee met
four times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor; considered and approved the terms of engagement
of the external auditor for provision of profits tax services; reviewed the
half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit before commencement; met the external
auditor without the presence of executive board members of the Company;
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
recommended the Board on the new approach to internal control and risk
management; and considered and made recommendations to the Board on
the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties, the

audit policy and the terms of reference of the committee.

The audit committee also agreed with the external auditor on the scope and
extent of the interim review before commencement and ensured, with the
assistance of the accounting/financial staff, the Company’s compliance with
its policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services

to the Group.
The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESEAE FERHEEER

54= Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend

EREE(ZEEFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 4/4
£/ Mr Lee Chung 4/4
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Board Committees (continued)

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March
2016, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate governance.
At the meetings, the Board reviewed and modified the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and revised corporate governance policies and practices including those
relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

BEELRUMAESS SR 080T Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set
out below:

HEESRAY EEREESRRE
- Directors Meetings attended/eligible to attend
NITEE Executive Directors
BRI () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
fopryealinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
ERIS/ N A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FEHITEE Non-executive Director
MR RB S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
BAEELE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
=N Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$739,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$238,000 to the Group, which included HK$56,000 and
HK$182,000 being charges for tax services and review of the interim results

of the Group respectively.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedures and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2016. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions. The Board considers that the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Relations
To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://aihl.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2016, there were no changes made to the

Articles of Association of the Company.

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T



TEERRE Corporate Governance Report

IR R E R )

HE2HE HAEBE @)
ARNABNERRRRBHACUHEAMNESSES
A2 RERCHFHARRARMEL - EPEE
5 7F H9 B B 3 1F (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com)
A0 - BEGRE R EER o MERMERE
FiFE 2 RERR - AEEEEARTARNES
BT 2R KEBRI18IHASFF O 7TE1712-1716F
ZREERE — BT REFSFELARA A

RIBER EPI R FhEEBCR B E
)~ ERRAIRAEERT 2 AR BEMERA
A ARBBRR(TBER D) AJEA TEEEFHEBRR
REMRBERAE LERHER

BRBRREFAE
o  ARARBEETRBRRERASIER/EBRE
FRE - BRAFAE—MRNOARTT -

o WEANRARYBFREKSEREF6EAR
DARBITRRAFAE (ULIEREF T4
A BMERRCRE AT R E B ER SR H
o YHERARR TS BRARBRRAE
EN-I

Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)
Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

° If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they:

(@)

represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

AGM to which the request relates; or

at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the

resolution at the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@

be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

identify the proposed resolution;

be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the

AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

the notice of AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and

upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified

as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the

Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@ must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d)  must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company; and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a GM, and
the meeting so convened must be called for a date not more than
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to
the requirement to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the
GM by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(a) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the statement to be circulated;

() be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

o The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company

to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(i) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in

circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(o) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the

Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and

accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) has pleasure in
submitting the annual report together with the audited financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 59 to 118.
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Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2015: HK$0.60 per share) was
paid on 5 January 2016. The Board now recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2015: HK$0.60 per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to the
said final dividend from Wednesday, 14 September 2016 to Monday,
19 September 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 pm on Tuesday, 13 September 2016. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 27 September 2016 to members whose
names appear on the register of members on Monday, 19 September 2016
following approval at the annual general meeting to be held on Thursday,
8 September 2016.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 6 September 2016
to Thursday, 8 September 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 5 September 2016.
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Business Review and Commentary

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$552.4 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2016, representing an increase of approximately 3.8% compared
with the previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to increase of

rental income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2016 amounted to HK$412.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$435.7 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of HK$871.4
million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders of

HK$1,290.4 million for the previous financial year.

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted to
approximately HK$664.0 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2016,
representing an increase of approximately 3.5% compared with the previous
financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2016 was approximately
96.3% compared with approximately 98.0% at 31 March 2015.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2016 was HK$14,739.1 million,
compared with HK$14,299.7 million at 31 March 2015.

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement with a
bank comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and a
3-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating interest
rate. The facility agreement will expire in October 2016 and the Company
intends to extend the facilities for at least three additional years. At 31 March
2016, the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2015:
HK$200 million) and the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans

divided by total equity) was 1.4% (2015: 1.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2016, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Property Management
Limited (formerly known as DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited) for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 38
(2015: 37) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately
HK$25.0 million (2015: HK$24.1 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
. Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

o Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 99.5% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: 99.5%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

o Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
iISQUARE at 31 March 2016 was 12.2% (2015: 12.5%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)

()

Occupancy rate

Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

Quantified KPI data:

HiEx

Occupancy rate
M20165F3H31H 2015563 H31H

BREYE Investment properties At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

B 35 iISQUARE 96.3% 98.0%

MUREBHEHMEEYE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%

URBEBN T EYE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
RIBER KR RIR Environmental policy and performance

RS HEER
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Notion and policy

Since the Group’s main business is property investment in Hong Kong, it

does not belong to an industry which brings about serious adverse effects

on the environment. Nevertheless, the management acknowledges that

being a responsible enterprise, the Group still has to take into account the

impact of its business operation on the environment while enjoying financial

growth.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)

Notion and policy (Continued)

As such, the Group has adopted an environmental policy with a focus on the

following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements
2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection where practicable

3. promoting environmental awareness among staff

4. adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation

5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way

6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials
7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and

encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process

Highlights

In order to help reduce carbon emissions from the office, the Group during
the year under review started using FSC-certified white papers and turned
some on-trial measures concerning ways to reduce paper consumption and
disposal of waste paper into permanent ones. The Group also participated in
the “Earth Hour 2016” and “Hong Kong No Air Con Night 2015” organised
by World Wide Fund for Nature (“WWF”) and Green Sense respectively so as

to raise the staff awareness on environmental conservation.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance

. using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps

o recycling used paper through a paper recycling company

. employing multi-zone lighting controls

. switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not
in use
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)
Highlights (Continued)

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, iISQUARE, being the Group’s main operation vehicle, also takes

proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, it

° replaced some PL-C energy savers with T5 fluorescent lamps

o participated in “Earth Hour 2016” as organised by WWF

o provided venues at a substantially discounted rate for events
promoting the nature and environmental awareness, such as the
exhibition organised by WWF against ivory trade and the Green Photo

contest exhibition hosted by Hong Kong Green Building Council

In addition to the aforesaid, ISQUARE keeps employing the green measures

it has been using, such as

. use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
. diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
. installation of lighting controls with timer and shortening daily operating

hours of lights and air-conditioning at common areas accessible by

shoppers where possible

. encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally

friendly practices

° recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

° equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”)

Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
investment holding, and iISQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the
total amount of direct GHG emissions generated by them is relatively small.
The largest contributor to the carbon footprint of both the Group and
iISQUARE in the year under review was the indirect GHG emissions from

electricity consumption.

HBZ3A31BLEE N3A31A

BRIBEE By Year ended/as at 31 March

Environmental indicators Unit 2016 2015

BERBHER(CELLRER)

GHG emissions (CO, equivalent)

B (/1)

Direct sources (Scope 1)

o L2 NI 0.73 0.67
Diesel? Tonnes

AR (#E2)!

Indlirect sources (Scope 2)!

o FJB NI 6,773.21 8,716.35
Electricity? Tonnes

i AR (86/23)1

Other indirect sources (Scope 3)!

o RIBRI/KMELAHE N NI 24.39 22.91
Electricity used for processing fresh water* Tonnes

o RIBSKMLAHE fs NI 10.88 9.72
Electricity used for processing sewage® Tonnes

BENAZEREBHER(CELLRER)

GHG emissions avoided (CO, equivalent)

o ARGRMIYLe yNU 224.98 NEA
Recycling of papert Tonnes NA
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”) (Continued)

BZE3A3ALEE H3A31A
RIBER By Year ended/as at 31 March
Environmental indicators Unit 2016 2015
EERHE Y
Waste collected for recycling
o MR Ny 46,870.00 NER
Paper? kg NA
o yARES A 208.00 NER
Plastics® kg NA
. o A 169.00 TEA
Metals® kg NA

Gk

2

RERBHR  BEOENGEAE  ZRERET
BEMRBRESMGERACEBZEY (B - £
EAHAR) R ERE R R E R &5
S EBREREES DR RERE - A
BNARZ BT CREE N HEHRBALIR

FFR 2R

BEVERRESHEA RN 2 RS EBRMELN
BEROREREHN - B T REEAHEER)

BEEAEAEERERESNENARTBEMRE
RWEN(EAFERELBIERMBENENRINM
SIMREEORE R -

HESKEAALERERESEHER - B5RBUT
BRIFEEERK R FK(EFPBEBEE KEER
SN IFERE NFTSI M E bR BR =R HER o 4T
FROBFEFTE £ MBEHUR B AT EERN ©

HHERKERESESHBERNCOAEREBREE
'*ﬁ BIESI P B A B R B R RESS

o

jm]}

Note 1:

Note 2:

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
and the Environmental Protection Department (the “Hong Kong GHG
Guidelines”). Al numbers in this table are rounded to two decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned
and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation
of electricity which the Group and iISQUARE, excluding tenants through their
own metered supply, purchased from power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that are relevant to the activities
of the Group and iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for
processing fresh water and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’
own metered supply, by government departments. Emissions from paper
consumption are excluded.

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the

emergency generator of iISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potential set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”) (Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note &:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group and ISQUARE for own consumption as shown in electricity bills and
the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the Drainage
Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper documents
tendered by external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through
iISQUARE) and the relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG
Guidelines. Amount of paper collected for recycling first recorded is for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Including paper generated within the Group, paper documents tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.

Being plastics disposed through iSQUARE. No such data is available before

the year ended 31 March 2016.

Being metals disposed through iISQUARE. No such data is available before
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-

compliance with any relevant laws and regulations relating to the

environment that had a significant impact on it.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Suppliers

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
management company engaged to run iSQUARE (the “MgtCo”), professional
service providers and some other companies that deliver services for
support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation on areas such
as insurance, banking and information technology. Services of the indirect
suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering, cleaning and

security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo.

Based on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the
Group’s key suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the
latter one is particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with
the indirect suppliers. In order to enable the MgtCo to truly understand the
Group’s concerns and notions, and work with it towards the same direction,
the MgtCo has been provided with relevant policies of the Group. Apart from
written communication, the Group also has frequent direct dialogue and

regular meetings with the MgtCo.

Although more than half of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that around 80% of the selected suppliers found partnering with the Group

was not merely mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Customers

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team
pays visits to the shops from time to time so as to exchange views with the
tenants directly and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can
also contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone
and email as and when needed. In spite of the limited written complaints
received during the year ended 31 March 2016, a formal complaint-handling
mechanism has been set up so as to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction can be

properly addressed to in a timely manner.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year under review conducted a satisfaction
survey on half of its tenants. Although the survey result showed that there
were some areas such as technical and maintenance services the Group
had to further work on, about 50% of the respondents considered the overall
performance in each of the areas of leasing and management as satisfactory.
Over 80% of the respondents expressed interest in renewing tenancy with
the Group and more than 70% said they would recommend iISQUARE to

their business partners.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Employees

Employees* are the valuable asset of the Group. To assist its staff to develop
their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately, the Group
provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees, irrespective of their
rankings. Since a good work-life balance is considered equally significant to
the employees, the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within
office hours and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of

the Group.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared among the management and relevant department heads so as

to identify ways to make further improvement.

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. About 70% of the respondents found either satisfied or very
satisfied with the Group as a whole whilst about 60% was happy with the
workforce-management relationship. As at 31 March 2016, over half of the
employees have been working with the Group over a decade. The employee
turnover rate for the year ended 31 March 2016 was around 9% while the

employee absence rate was less than 1.5%.

* Employees exclude directors of the Company and staff employed by the MgtCo
for general building and property management of ISQUARE in this context.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Rental income is the main source of revenue for the Group and the Board
closely monitors factors which may affect the leasing of iISQUARE particularly
changes in the retail market and the external economic environment that

would be regarded as principal risks.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

With the continuing slowdown on the Hong Kong retail market, the Group
will continue to monitor closely the impact on the leasing market and
to adopt appropriate leasing strategies in order to reduce the possible
downward pressure on the rental income from iISQUARE and the results

from operations of the Group for the coming financial year.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Miss Cheong Chong Ling, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles and
Mr Lee Chung shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of all the
Company’s subsidiaries were Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng

Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong Sim Lam.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2016, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following interests in the
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ AT (@) The Company
LEREE
Number of ordinary shares

HEBTH
EREE
ERER BRAD 48 8
EARER REER DR By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
i Name interests interests interests interests shares
IR IE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
S e Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 - 12,035,119 3.34%
f=pede] Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
il Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
HErERR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%

FB)(Note)

i QAR THY120,0000RIBEBRA

FEAERR S A REFB MBS HRE
KA A)) B4 #9120,00088 & @AY -
1B - S MR B A LSRRI

A(—FH
#\HT*%U
RIRE
s o

Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
shares held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho
Chiu, Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KA (@) and Debentures (continued)
(b) REMERRLE (b) Tian Teck Land Limited
RGBE
Number of shares
HE BTN
BERERE
BERER IR1D B
B AR KEER DR e WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
EEEe Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 590,000 - 4,625,792 0.97%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
sE M Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
fpede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
$EIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
B Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(31)(Note)
2 ARMERETHI115,20008 AR EAR AR (—/M Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares

AR R S A e TR PAAR S 15 % 2 A B
EIR ) FiH5A §9115,2008 %17 » R IRE 5
1B - SR ERAR BT UL SR B

held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,

Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be

interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

ZERHE

Number of ordinary shares
IHE BT
EREE
BEER IR1D 4B
BAER XEER DR B WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
$EREIE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
sEmE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fikeqe) Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%

B LAl Pri B S - BA R AR B G D
EI2GHRERTFNERMER - SURBIRLEST
AR AR R R REZPAEHRE - 1
“ERFZA=TH ARFEF &SR
BREBEA(Z ETRAZER)IDLEHRBA
A EARRE B (AT & 7 F G EXVERFTEI A
=)WMD - BERH REEZNOERIORE

A
n
..
&

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2016, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

HE BTN

BERERRD

EEREE HBENBEIL
Number of Percentage of total

ordinary shares issued voting shares

REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%

(FE1)(Note 1)

RiEEMERRAF Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(F£1)(Note 1)
$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 711%
(5:2)(Note 2)
WA & Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 711%
(F£2)(Note 2)
i Notes:
(1) BRRTE HIRGIF 336K M IBTE R IR G i A B B H 1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of

MET - REERARMREN R EREHESR
AR FEEY180,030,681 A A (A 1A

@ EEMEETBEBEORSEMNEBELZIRED
25,589,715 ik 13 1B [A)  7£25,589,715 A 5
24,555, 71508 REBIBR S 15 - 1,084,0008% Al &
HEBME B L LS -

B I EEN R E-RE=ZF=1+—H "
AN B A 4 R N R () LAt R S BR B S R 4
3365 M B H 17 N & L MY AR B R% 1D AN A3 BE

R EERSIRA

the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 25,589,715
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 25,589,715 shares,
24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 1,034,000 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its parent company or controlling shareholders or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

Due to allowances for expenses actually incurred, the directors’ emoluments
of the following directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 have changed

when compared with those for the last financial year:

- Mr Cheong Hooi Hong’s emoluments decreased by HK$37,000 to
HK$2,260,000.

— Mr Cheong Kheng Lim’s emoluments increased by HK$756,000 to
HK$4,546,000, of which, HK$3,169,000 (2015: HK$3,103,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief operation

officer.

— Mr Cheong Keng Hooi’s emoluments increased by HK$103,000 to
HK$1,991,000.

— Mr Cheong Sim Lam’s emoluments decreased by HK$306,000 to
HK$2,188,000, of which, HK$1,772,000 (2015: HK$1,812,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief investment

officer.
- Miss Cheong Chong Ling’s emoluments decreased by HK$403,000
to HK$595,000.

Despite the above changes, the Company’s policy regarding the said

expenses has not changed.
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Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Management Contracts

(@)

()

The Company has an administrative services agreement and also
a non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite
period, with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
whereby the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company
secretarial services (under the administrative services agreement) and
office space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2015:
HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited (formerly
known as DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited)
(“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is responsible for general building and property
management (except for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE.
The management agreement was renewed for a term of twelve
months commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically
renewed on an annual basis thereafter, subject to the right of
termination by the Company. Manager’s remuneration of HK$600,000
(2015: HK$600,000) was paid by the Company for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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EEEE Fixed Assets
AREEBRREWENT : Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:
HERSEREEYE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
ith B REAZ HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
Bl &% YL A HR

BRI IE RPN =57
(JLBEIBER 742555 )
iISQUARE Shopping centre Medium
63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

BT ®KNE TiH RSB AR
HNABRL - — ARG K

HRLT ~ L2~ L3N LA EfL

NEBETRE-AZAR

(BB AR 225%)
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

BRI E 50 NS =
hE

BETHmBR =2 TR R

BEHEP_T—E_T=%

(555 1B 36655 )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 12% and 32% of the
Group’s total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their close associates or any
member of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any

interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2016 are set out in notes 20 to 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$1,287,000 (2015: HK$2,110,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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hFHBHE Five Year Financial Summary
AEBRBEREFBRFENXERNEELEE A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
BEBEHNARFRFE119BEF 1208 ° last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.
2 EEm Auditor

EERSHAIEEAAGEER - HREEZEET - KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
HESRSTMEHKTETARQ R ZEAMA R resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to
# o BRI BRMIERAFAE LR - be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AEEDW By order of the Board

*E Cheong Hooi Hong

fEEE Chairman

BB ZE-REXAZTLER Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 69, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983
respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for nearly 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 67, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and
a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He
currently is the Chief Operation Officer of the Company and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

and various subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 63, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 57, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 36 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 45, joined the Company as an assistant
to directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of the
Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the

School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 80, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and holds a
degree of Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman
of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of
the Home Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee
of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban

Council and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman), remuneration
committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as member) of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience
in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 75, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau
has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister
in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore
and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to
Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as
a barrister until 2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 42, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr Lee holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado
School of Mines in the United States and a MBA degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture

capital and property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 39, is the accounting manager of
the Company. She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 16 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 65, joined the Company in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 36 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 59, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 46, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 118, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of the
Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BE-ZE-AR"E=ZA=+—BILEE(UE%FI’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
BosE T Tt
Note $°000 $'000
ON Revenue 3 667,214 644,984
BRAGAL AR Cost of services (81,043) (80,474)
EF Gross profit 586,171 564,510
HAWA Other revenue 5 4,430 7,275
HtnEEF5E Other net loss 5 (14) 37)
THER Administrative expenses (38,141) (39,466)
REVELESSH Profit from operations before valuation
B4R R A changes in investment properties 552,446 532,282
KEWMEGHBEREF Valuation gains on investment properties 12(a) 412,285 848,002
REVEGEREE Profit from operations after valuation
FI & =R changes in investment properties 964,731 1,380,284
A AR Finance costs 6(a) (2,458) (2,398)
RRBE AR R Profit before taxation 6 962,273 1,377,886
FTigfi Income tax 9(a) (90,904) (87,507)
NEREBRFEEEREE Profit and total comprehensive income
aAREEB AL for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company 871,369 1,290,379
SRE2R —EXREE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 11 $2.42 $3.58

FOLEEF8ENWEBAMHREN—3D The notes on pages 65 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

B A F A R A R R AR R AR B ARSI Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
HRMIEET0 ° attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZB-ARE=ZA=+—HB(LB%%I’R) At 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
FosE T Tt
Note $°000 $'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
BE&E Fixed assets 12(a)
— KRB YE — Investment properties 14,646,230 14,232,730
— HME - BE MK — Other properties, plant and equipment 78,407 85,507
14,724,637 14,318,237
REBEE Current assets
FEUEREK ~ 51 RFENRR Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 14 20,580 24,575
BIEHIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 15 161,791 152,718
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 16 338,250 300,637
520,621 477,930
REEE Current liabilities
IRITER — B Bank loan — secured 20 200,000 —
HibEA RN EREH Other payables and accruals 17 20,398 24,106
EET & Deposits received 18 204,307 198,312
REARS & %45 Provision for long service payments 19 1,581 1,434
B E T E IR Obligations under finance leases 21 29 29
RERFEFRS AL Current tax payable 9(c) 23,017 23,324
449,332 247,205
REEERE Net current assets 71,289 230,725
EEAERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 14,795,926 14,548,962
kFRBEE Non-current liabilities
SRITER — Bk Bank loan — secured 20 - 200,000
RS BURH(E Government lease premiums payable 22 1,980 2,037
RE T E A Obligations under finance leases 21 75 104
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 54,792 47,111
56,847 249,252
EEFE NET ASSETS 14,739,079 14,299,710
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HEBMERRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZB-—XR"E=ZA=+—H(UB%IIR) At 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
BtaE Fr T
Note $°000 $'000

BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
&N Share capital 23(b) 360,000 360,000
R Reserves 14,379,079 13,939,710
ESAE TOTAL EQUITY 14,739,079 14,299,710

EReN T "E AT T RENET A © Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2016.

EZ = Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EEM Director Director

FOLEEF8ENWEBAMBHRERN—3H The notes on pages 65 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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mEERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z—X"F=ZA=1+—-HBLFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NEERRRERL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

B BB REEF REAE

Share  Revaluation Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
BT Fr Tr Fr Fr
Note $°000 $000 $°000 $°000
R2014F4 A1 G ER Balance at 1 April 2014 360,000 1,778,150 11,303,181 13,441,331
TEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
REEHNR2HEWALT  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — 1,290,379 1,290,379
B —BERFELERR S Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) — — (216,000) (216,000)
BRAAHHEESTIRMALE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) — — (216,000) (216,000)
— — 858,379 858,379
R2015F3A318 K Balance at 31 March 2015 and
20154 B1 B H&E 64 1 April 2015 360,000 1,778,150 12,161,560 14,299,710
TEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
REFHHR2EWALZ  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - 871,369 871,369
BN F—BIEEE A ERALS  Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) - - (216,000) (216,000)
BARBBEES RS Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) - - (216,000) (216,000)
- - 439,369 439,369
M2016E3 A31 A4S Balance at 31 March 2016 360,000 1,778,150 12,600,929 14,739,079

FOLEEF18ENWEBAMBHREN—35 The notes on pages 65 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-ZE-XR"E=ZA=+—BILEE(UE%II’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
hEs Fr T
Note $°000 $'000
K SEE Operating activities
B 58 Al A Profit before taxation 962,273 1,377,886
HERIERE - Adjustments for:
— FEHA — Interest income (3,155) (3,123)
— REERAR — Finance costs 2,458 2,398
— e — Depreciation 7,344 9,608
— BEYEEHBERET — Valuation gains on investment properties (412,285) (848,002)
— EEETERESETRE — Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 14 37
EEESEBAIKSE BT Operating profit before changes in
working capital 556,649 538,804
FEUERRR ~ 5T &% Decrease in accounts receivable,
RO deposits and prepayments 4,010 1,099
EMENR R IERTE R (Decrease)/increase in other payables
R /10 and accruals (1,448) 5,805
EUGET &1 N Increase in deposits received 5,995 22,083
KRB LR Increase/(decrease) in provision for long
=, Cd) service payments 147 (86)
FEAST IR AT HBAE e Decrease in government lease premiums
payable (54) (52)
REEEABHNERS Cash generated from operations 565,299 567,653
2R Tax paid
— BREERNEH — Hong Kong profits tax paid (83,530) (86,372)
RETEHRMBNRSTE Net cash generated from
operating activities 481,769 481,281
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FEHELARER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-_Z—X"F=ZA=1+—-BLFE(UBUIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
FaaE Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
RETE Investing activities
EFIE Interest received 3,139 3,040
BABTEENK Payment for purchase of fixed assets
(TEEREYE) other than investment properties (258) (1,247)
REME ST KR Payment for expenditure on investment
properties (3,430) (50,181)
REETEEMSIIAE Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets — 432
DR TEZR(IE ) B4 (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits (9,073) 91,862
BEFEE (), Fr8m Net cash (used in)/generated from
& BEE investing activities (9,622) 43,906
ST E Financing activities
ENREFRERSHMEARESD Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (29) (36)
2 BT HETRE Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable (105) (107)
BERRITERFE Interest paid on bank loan (2,150) (2,074)
B E At & AR Other borrowing costs paid (250) (250)
BEXARE Dividends paid (432,000) (432,000)
BMEEBMANRERR Net cash used in financing activities (434,534) (434,467)
BeRBSEEYIENFERE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 37,613 90,720
7A2015/2014F4 818K Cash and cash equivalents
HERREZEEY at 1 April 2015/2014 300,637 209,917
MIANENEER Cash and cash equivalents
ReZEEY at 31 March 16 338,250 300,637
FOEEF18ENWEBAMHREN —3H The notes on pages 65 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% %%)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

TESHEX

(@

BREH

KRB RERBIRRAABERANCEE
FBRELEAN(UAEBEREL SR

Bl A & MR fn B0 AT A B R R ERIKE
R EER) - (FRGFHERDM
2E) FEARGHRUMER(A
ARG E R ERE - AP BHKRA
RN ERMNEEBRERZMAR
REEFEFETRUDBERE - AT
EREERANER ST BRME -

BEGER RSB T A TIEAHM
RIEFTECEBMBIMELER) - %%
ENEARKEMARRE RN
R ERERSH A HIBEERA - 2
TR A RE 056 8 R 45 L B R SR (B4 R
I E RPN AE R AR LRI Z (L
Al B E R M AE &5t BB & 5T
REBEER

:

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.



(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESTTEBER @)
( HEEE

MRAEEE-—BALRHE(BRE-IAR
SR —RIR 5 ) HEE R E i E I
NEE R L EEENERE
BBl — R ZEMK - AERTHE
EER%BE —RHEE - EEREN
HRBLRHNBEEMETARE M
TEERTHER W MEEREET

=X o

AREBEHEEEN DA

HRAEBNEERAENE
= MRBEEMEENBA
BoRELMERER E=ARE
B BENEEERESBERMN
REHEERE MREETE
EFTE RER B R EB D B A =
BEBEAKE  ANBEAK
EHE - BTIBERERS

ISR A EEAM
FEEFERENETER
MY SRBEEDE
WEES A RITEWE -
MRS RTEYE - H
ARAREWRIARE R
ER:A (2BME1d) —
ERId

PREHERFER - 8
BEEAEEERREHER
REERENE EMEE
MO RAREEDFHAERN
THRRAREHERH
FRAARR  (EFRIAL
LHERENRENR
Sh o BRIt S - HEMR
IR R A KB EIRET
YHEER  EREAEA
BRUGREEYES

:

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).



(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESTTBER@E

)

e

EitZ - BERRAEER 0HET
BRARERRENE) - BER
ST RERAE R ET

— T REFT NHsEEFERE
51 AT A EARR 2 B
HETE - LUEK R
HARBET N Z RN 405F

— &ML KE 5F
&

— AE 5%

IMREMPE - B MEREEE A
KEBLERRNAT AR - AR
BERRAERRAENELEDEER
TIﬁB“ - M EESERD &S R RT

c AEHEBFEEMNEEN T A
ﬁE*ﬂﬁﬁzfﬁ(ﬁDﬁ) C

BERE
() FEWEF
&
REEE T ERERRLER

I%E?;zﬁkzﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁkzﬁf\ﬁﬁ
B L BR RN B At PR UL R
ﬁEE%Eﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁs% 2
BENEBEERREAEEE
BRUAT B ZHEEBESH
B A R RS

KL b LK R B R

—  EBABAZERNPEH
i

— ERAH MERNTE
XAMERAZE

—  EBATREERRESHE
I BER &

— B TR @RS
TR IR RS AR
EYENEASD -

:

B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Q)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40
years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
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Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

= For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of accounts receivable, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESFHBER @) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) EBEBRE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) HtsBEEREGE) (i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
MREBFEMEEDR - BIZ If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
BEMFAIMEIZERS T AT amount is estimated.

—  EEAIKDEERE —  Calculation of recoverable amount
BEMIINEEEEAEA The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
REEREEENANEA of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
SEEMEFREEMRS in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
AR & A% - E5HE future cash flows are discounted to their present
FREER - SERKRM value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
AIHTIR G RRIRE current market assessments of the time value of
MEWFBRERE - ZITH money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
P R TS E R FTRT an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
HREEREEBMZE independent of those from other assets, the
ENEERE - nREE recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
FTEARRESRAZREARE group of assets that generates cash inflows
TR EMEEFES independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

BWIREMA - RILABEIEZ
EXRSRANRNEE
SRRI(BIIR S EEBIT)R

& AT Bl B o
—  ERFEEE —  Recognition of impairment losses

INREESMBIRESES An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
B EREE SR E AU if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
O] ErEERy - B YEBET generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
WRBEEE - SRS E its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
HEITERN B EEIE recognised in respect of cash-generating units
SR BIR A% B T (3 are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
BT NEERNERE assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
& BEEMNERAETS basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
WA EBEREBERNARE will not be reduced below its individual fair value
BRI B ANE TS less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
BH(gest2) Sk EFAE (if determinable).

BE(INEEEETE) o
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESTTEBER @)

(h)

BEEBE@®
i)y EMEEREGE
—  REEEERE

MR T & EA IR E
HEEM G SRR ER
HB L - BRERREEE
EeEE - FrigmE aRE
BRI EERE
R EEETEDET
HBEREEAR - FiE
Bl ¢ R B A 1B TE R R )
HIEREPUET A SRR

(i) AR ERRA SRS ARE
RIBCE BB AR DER AR
BHELEWRAD)  AEEAER
(BB G ER)E 345 HEF
BRE INRERMBRFEENE
NEAREPHABRSE - &
SEEF HAARRA T EH K
FERERGRANER R
BRI - ERNEEER (23
BiRE ()()FAG)) ©

R LAY BRSRR A LA FE Ui R

FEL BRSO EL AL FE MO SRR 2 A1 TR (B 7)
AR « H 1R AR
FRAS I 2 R B L (B 8 (2 B o
1(h) () & AT S BRBASR ¢ B IEIK
AT RIB I TREEERBY
S EERRENRY Y TEAAG
5h e FEHEHRT « MR RILZAA
AERERAEER RSB -

mEMEK
TEERRAABEREEERI SN
RIRVIIETER o VIIATERIR - HEE
IR AARR - AR TER AR
HEBENEEZFRNENER - ER
EREMNSMER - HABRF X
EREFE AR ST RER o

:

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)()
and (ii)).

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)()), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

K)

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTEER@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(s) FEEER (s) Related parties
@ —BATHIZALTHRELR (@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
WREEASENBEB S - W related to the Group if that person:
BEAT
i) HBAREBEZEHIESER () has control or joint control over the Group;

I

iy HAEBBEERTEN: (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
£

iy RAEEXAEEEFANT] (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
MEEREIEAS - the Group or the Group’s parent.

b)) —EEENFTSTMETIIE (b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

5 B A2 AN 5 B A RE B conditions applies:

5o

() ZEBHEAKEHAER ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
—SBEHNKE (SRR same group (which means that each parent,
7]« WEARMEZME subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
NEF LA ) others).

iy —(AEBES—EREAH (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BRaaEtE(HE other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
B—ERBEEETK member of a group of which the other entity is a
BEMBERTHE & D member).
EJK

iy METEHER—F=H (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
Ma &R - party.

ivy —EEERFE=HEEN (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

s the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in ().

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that

are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods

have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s

revenue. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to

(ZZ—F % :89,413,0007T) °

ENAREMEHENBRANEREDREE
B BEEENLEB T2

5 HABWAREIEFER

R UEYE3E
RREVE TS B

approximately $82,545,000 (2015: $89,413,000).

4  Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.

No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong.

5 Other Revenue and Net Loss

2016 2015
T Tt
$°000 $'000
Hethg A Other revenue
F B WA Interest income 3,155 3,123
MR AWM EIEE A Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
IRATKRIFFAEFTESHIEEE  Compensation from early termination of leases - 2,581
Hth Others 75 371
4,430 7,275
HihEEFE Other net loss
RERBTEBEERIEFE Net loss on disposals of fixed assets (14) @7
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B ®/KRM T Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 FRBLEREA 6 Profit Before Taxation

BRBADEFIE M, (GEA) -

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2016 2015
T T
$°000 $'000
(@ ®ERAK (@) Finance costs
RITERF B Interest on bank loan 2,104 2,043
RSB B T B Interest on government lease premiums
payable 103 105
E A fE TR Other borrowing costs 251 250
2,458 2,398
(b) BIMEZE (b)  Staff costs
e TERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 41,402 39,994
RERFERIKRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,338 1,129
42,740 41,123
(c) EHtEB (c) Otheritems
KEWMENHS KA Gross rental income from investment
Fkc) properties (667,214) (644,984)
B BT Less: Direct outgoings 81,043 80,474
(586,171) (564,510)
%A & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZE R — audit services 739 685
— AR — tax services 56 85
— H R — other services 182 168
e Depreciation 7,344 9,608
IS BR FUR (B B 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable 323 =

Associated International Hotels Limited S| & B}
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMe 7 Directors’ Emoluments
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) i M A &) (H# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
BEEFSEE)IBHYFE 2205 3R 5= = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
2= 4: BIRGTE 2016
EEWE REYNZ BETEAL = B
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Fx Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
HITES Executive Directors
$EESE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,510 700 - 2,260
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,796* 700 - 4,546
SE iR Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,641 300 - 1,991
fpede) Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,838 300 — 2,188
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 50 404 120 21 595
FHITEE Non-executive Director
B Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
B EHIT Independent Non-executive
=2 Directors
EEays! Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
=5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
YU Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
810 9,569 2,120 21 12,520
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMew 7 Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
RIEEBCR BMEDI Y 383(1) i M A &) (# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
BEEFSEE)BHIYFE 225 3R 5 E = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (8) (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows: (Continued)

e o 2R RIRETE 2015
Exme kEYAN= BIEAEAL e ek
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’”  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
SEIEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,547 700 = 2,297
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,034* 700 6 3,790
o bz Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,538 300 = 1,888
frped) Cheong Sim Lam 50 2,144 300 = 2,494
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 50 807 120 21 998
FHITESE Non-executive Director
VAR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - — 430
B EEIT Independent Non-executive
= Directors
EEays! Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 — - — 170
=5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 = = = 170
YU Lee Chung 170 = = = 170
810 9,450 2,120 27 12,407
* ERHEITEEMEBMTERHEEME * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
B & F - b s E A H 4 53,210,000 7T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
—Z—Fh% :3,210,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,210,000 (2015: $3,210,000).
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B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 &=

“E-RAFERITAFFERAUSGSHE
MATHRARFNES - AP &R

MizE7

SMEe AL

o

9 FREH
GeBEEkEMEEKAR (@) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive

(@)

FRREIPRISBIES

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
The five highest paid individuals for 2015 and 2016 are all directors of

9 Income Tax

income represents:

the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

2016 2015
Fr Tt
$°000 $000
AHFIE — HBFEHR Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
RFETIAREE Provision for the year 83,263 80,187
AR F 2R R Over-provision in respect of prior years (40) (116)
83,223 80,071
EEBE Deferred tax
TR ERENELENED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,681 7,436
90,904 87,507

EBFEREBREAFEMME
JESE R % F LA16.5% ( — T —FH 4 :

16.5% ) TR RETE -

Annual Report 2015-2016 3}

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%

(2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

P
9 PTEHiam 9 Income Tax (continued)
(b) PTEH X HMizE AR ES (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEiaf MR - accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

2016 2015
T T
$000 $'000
BR A% AR F Profit before taxation 962,273 1,377,886

12 RB16.5%(2015%F : 16.5%) Notional tax on profit before taxation,

RIRR R 5T B R BTa A1 Y calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
ZEHIE 158,775 227,351
AR EA AT E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 521 524
DA RN EMTIBTE Tax effect of non-taxable income (68,352) (140,252)
AEFEEFBT Over-provision in prior years (40) (116)
ERHRES N Actual tax expense 90,904 87,507

) #HEBBEARRRER R (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
Fri88iA - statement of financial position represents:
2016 2015
T T
$'000 $'000
NEEEBFGHER Provision for Hong Kong profits tax

for the year 83,263 80,187
B EHFISH Provisional profits tax paid (60,246) (56,863)
AERFEFTERL Current tax payable 23,017 23,324
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 mEH @

(d)

CHRRIELERERRE
B A MR KRR R IA
AENERBANAEZEZHOT :

9 Income Tax (continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BBAERETE
MIFERBE
Depreciation
allowances

in excess of
the related

depreciation

Frx
$°000

RETNHESENEES S ! Deferred tax arising from:
M201454 818 At 1 April 2014 39,675
TEE R Bk Charged to profit or loss 7,436
M20153H31H At 31 March 2015 47,111
R2015%4 818 At 1 April 2015 47,111
FEBz R H0RR Charged to profit or loss 7,681
#K2016F3H31H At 31 March 2016 54,792

Annual Report 2015-2016 3}
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11

0 I8

@ AFERMNRAAEBZRKRRRK

BN

10 Dividends

(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

2016 2015
Fr Tt
$000 $'000
BEIR &R ERE Interim dividend declared and paid of
FH%0.607T $0.60 per share
(2015%F : &M%0.607T) (2015: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000
RS HERE R B RS Final dividend proposed after the end of
7R R ER B & /%0.607T the reporting period of $0.60 per share
(2015%F : &M%0.607T) (2015: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000
432,000 432,000

R EHIRAR S B IR EE D KRS
BHAERENERERERSR

8

I
7

T
>

b) BRE-MERFEENALQT
BmBRR - WAARFEHRE
KA S

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2016 2015
T T
$°000 $'000
B E—BRFE - RN Final dividend in respect of the previous
RE RN TR financial year, approved and paid during
RERR% B & A%0.607T the year, of $0.60 per share
(20154 : §A%0.607T) (2015: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000

REF — BERREE
HQEZK%%U%EE’SKEF‘*E@“E
T O R E (5 % Fl 871,369,000 T

T— A4 ¢ 1,290,379,0007T ) & B 317

LHXSESOOOOOOOHX(_;E fF
360,000,000 f% ) & & - —%—ﬁi&
TE-ARFUEBENEELE

11 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $871,369,000
(2015: $1,290,379,000) and 360,000,000 (2015: 360,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year. There were no potential

dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2015 and 2016.

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEE 12 Fixed Assets
@)
RENE Hi  BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
BFEX
EENE Hitty % HitEE et k]
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
A HE : Cost or valuation:
20154818  At1 Apri 2015 14,232,730 100,464 34,048 134,512 14,367,242
e Additions 1,415 - 258 258 1,673
AN Cost adjustment (200) - - - (200)
BE Disposals - - (114) (114) (114)
RABEFHE Fair value adjustments 412,285 - - - 412,285
20163 H31H At 31 March 2016 14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
REK: Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 34,192 134,656 134,656
{8 —2016%  Valuation — 2016 14,646,230 - - — 14,646,230
14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
ZFHFE - Accumulated depreciation:
R2015F4 318 At1 April 2015 - 24,084 24,921 49,005 49,005
REEHE Charge for the year - 3,444 3,900 7,344 7,344
a B RO Written back on disposals - - (100) (100) (100)
201643 H31H At 31 March 2016 - 27,528 28,721 56,249 56,249
REFE Net book value:
201643 H31H At 31 March 2016 14,646,230 72,936 5,471 78,407 14,724,637
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE@) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@ @ (@) (continued)
BREME Hib ¥ - BB K&t
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FER
BEME Hib Hin&E e k]
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
AT fHE : Cost or valuation:
R2014F481H At 1 April 2014 13,375,140 100,464 34,076 134,540 13,509,680
e Additions 9,588 — 1,392 1,392 10,980
RE Disposals — — (1,420) (1,420) (1,420)
NRBEAE Fair value adjustments 848,002 = - — 848,002
M201543H31H At 31 March 2015 14,232,730 100,464 34,048 134,512 14,367,242
R : Representing:
B Cost — 100,464 34,048 134,512 134,512
& — 20154 Valuation — 2015 14,232,730 - = — 14,232,730
14,232,730 100,464 34,048 134,512 14,367,242
25HiNE . Accumulated depreciation:
20144818 At1April 2014 — 20,640 19,694 40,334 40,334
KEEHE Charge for the year = 3,444 6,164 9,608 9,608
BB Written back on disposals = = (937) (937) (937)
201593 H31H At 31 March 2015 - 24,084 24,921 49,005 49,005
BREFHE ¢ Net book value:
201593 A31H At 31 March 2015 14,232,730 76,380 9,127 85,507 14,318,237
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZB—XRF=R=+—H KEY
XERBERES HEIXAEN
ETEMRBEESPON—E - 2
MEBRBUNE BN BEREZHN—
C—ETEREMNETEM - kW
BEEWE -

0 2AREEER
TREJAEENHE AR
BRRKFHEELEMGFENRE
MERAEE ZEVWER
BARKEEM B REER)
F1SR[ AR EEFEIFEDN
“EARBEER - AKES
RIATEETDEMFANEA
ENAEREEMEEE 1
MEE AR EETEREME
ROBHEAR -

— FEBARMGE: RERS
—ERwAE(BETE
ARAETIZAEREE
HAFENRERERE)
FEtEQARBE

— F_EBAMLE: ER%E=
B AE(BIRES—
BRmAEBERBAR)
WARBERME AR T AT #
R AERAEARE
8 - TRBRBAERE
RRTSBIENBAE

— FZEARMLE: RAEX
MR RI B R A BRFTE

AREE

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties

At 31 March 2016, investment properties comprise iSQUARE,
certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a floor of Euro
Trade Centre. Other properties comprise a floor of iISQUARE,

certain units of an industrial property, and two residential

properties in Hong Kong.

(

) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

= Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs

Annual Report 2015-2016 3}

95



96

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Z.sd

N7

12 BEIlEEE@m)
(b) 183

0 2rREEERGE)

BYMENAREETE®

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

NEBIEE AN L BEE None of the Group’s investment properties measured
MITEMEREEE—ERAK at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level 2

FEoEMMGE - WRREF=
EBREEORENESHOT -

valuations. The investment properties which are
categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:

2016 2015
F Fx
$°000 $'000
BREEEEMITEN Recurring fair value measurement
AREHE
WEEEE= Investment properties categorised into
EYE Level 3 valuations:
— R BB EYE — Commercial properties in Hong Kong 14,597,790 14,184,490
— IR BB T — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 48,440 48,240
14,646,230 14,232,730

E%'ﬁ%%z
Sl  AEBHBEEER
AEEEHR B HBEZHR
= HARS 4R 4% D SRS RIRERS o

Eﬂ£+ Etiﬁv&%—
HE-ERzELTENE
JE A IR A

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREYENDEBETE @ (b)

iy (HEEF

R-ZE—XR"E=A=+—8"
MR EERNZENERH
B HEMERM — BISHTEE
TEEMARAR(EETHA
BESIEMEBESERTEEZ
Bi% - BUWEGZMERE
ERFBERGMHAMEE 2
KB EITELR - EATILAER)
MEZTERER - EEED
B3 (B Bl 51 iR 7E & (B P EA AN 4
EiE HETHENRZMES
%o

iy FZERAAEEFENE
£
AEBRBRFERE - B
MENFHSBAEARE - I
ERIMELAERREREM
HERBEHESRSRANE
RS WEBEEREMENAD
REE  ERNTAEEHA

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued
at 31 March 2016 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BSEHT - below:
ERftRNEHE HAZNEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
RENE Investment properties 2016 2015 2016 2015
fRNERNEENE Commercial properties in Hong Kong 280% —5.00%  2.62% —5.00%  96.3% —100%  98.0% — 100%
URABBNTENE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% 4.00% 100% 100%

BREMENAAEEFERN
MERKIELREER - BREXR(
R R LR -

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREYENDEBETE @

iy B=ZERLALBEFAENE
&)

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i

KEERNE=BRAREBELHS

BERBIIT

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)
The movements during the year in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

LREBH REEH

[SEL/E S IEY=

Commercial Industrial

properties in properties in

Hong Kong Hong Kong

T Fr

$°000 $’000

R2014F4 818 At 1 April 2014 13,327,300 47,840
prh Additions 9,688 =
DR BEFAE Fair value adjustments 847,602 400
20153 A31H At 31 March 2015 14,184,490 48,240
R2015F481H At 1 April 2015 14,184,490 48,240
5= Additions 1,415 -
AT Cost adjustment (200) -
NABEFE Fair value adjustments 412,085 200
R20165E3H31H At 31 March 2016 14,597,790 48,440

REMENAABEFBLER
AREREMEERARNK
BYRMGERF IHE HH#ER -
AERRERSETHERH A
BEZFNAREANEENEE
HRRERBENYX -
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Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “valuation gains on investment
properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. All the
valuation gains recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties held at the end of the reporting

period.



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEIlEEE@m)

(©

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

YERESFEMNDMAOT - (c) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
2016 2015
Fr Fx
$000 $000
B In Hong Kong
— RS — Long leases 119,101 111,521
— R HIEE — Medium-term leases 14,600,065 14,197,589
14,719,166 14,309,110
HEERERM  £E - RERA (d)  Other assets comprise fumiture, fixtures, equipment and motor
== vehicles.
RMEHBEKRER AEENURE (€) At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office
HEREA E’J #7J AREXRBEEMFEES equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $104,000
104,00070( —Z—H4F :133,0007T) ° (2015: $133,000).
AEBUKLEHERHIREYE - & (f)  The Group leases out investment properties under operating

EHRERYNATEMFETH LB
BRERETRIERGER - ERFTE
BRG] EFREE - HE_T—F
AT BLEFEERBEFER
AU A A £ 513,696,000 7T
(ZZ—H%F : 15,850,0007T) °

MEEMERBRERMTEANE
REMEEENRENE  HEOR
RILEME °

leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2016

were $13,696,000 (2015: $15,850,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.
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(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE®m
#H @@

REBERBTIABEHCEHERER
BRENNRERENREAENT

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(f) (Continued)

7= @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivables as follows:

2016 2015

Fx FT

$°000 $'000

1ER Within 1 year 538,190 451,586
1612 {B5F R After 1 year but within 5 years 561,428 313,103
1,099,618 764,689

(9 EBEEIKH
R EHRRER  RITEREUEE
T & 514,551,079,000( Z & —H
% : 14,148,693,0007T ) ) [E & & E
1E R (2B3FI7E20) -

13 fiEB AT 13
T%&?U%%Z!Sﬁﬁﬁﬁwff%@ﬁ]%ﬂ* 0 ﬂ?\%ﬁ
SFERESN - AR AL R

(9) Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
value of $14,551,079,000 (2015: $14,148,693,000) were

pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AR BITRBE RADRFEH

NRER R RAFE Frib ezt Bl TEEH
Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation Particulars of issued and interest held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital the Company Principal activity
Associated International Resorts Limited &8 ) 100% TER

Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
BEARAA &t 200,000 &1 100% hERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment
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B EHEMTE Notes to the Financial S
(LL8#% %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FEWERR ~ FT2 RFENR

tatements

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments
2016 2015
Frx Tt
$°000 $'000
FEUAR K Accounts receivable 15,749 19,090
B RIBERER Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(P E14(0)) (note 14(b)) (1,575) (1,252)
14,174 17,838
HESSSEERE Deposits and prepayments 6,406 6,737
20,580 24,575
(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis
REBREKRER - 2EERKE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
R RBNRARNERERE for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts

R RIZRER) NIRRT T

receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
Fr T
$°000 $'000
AR Current 12,676 17,002
# B P M A Less than 1 month past due 1,453 471
BEA1 2= 3{E B 1 to 3 months past due 19 324
61 BR R A3 (E A More than 3 months but less than
BLR121E A 12 months past due 26 41
By Amounts past due 1,498 836
14,174 17,838
RR—MEGAERIE  EXER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
H—RATRETEX SR 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
FIE - REBEEBREMFIBIE charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

HHIEE24(a) ©

in note 24(a).
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FERWERR ~ T2 RFEN R e

(b) FEUWERFRIE

) 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(b) Impairment of accounts receivable

KEEARZREETEESSHOT ¢ The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

2016 2015

T Tt

$°000 $'000

72015/2014%4 A1H At 1 April 2015/2014 1,252 1,252

EERRBEERE Impairment losses recognised 323 —

M3H31H At 31 March 1,575 1,252
RZE—AF=ZA=+—H " [E At 31 March 2016, the accounts receivable of $1,575,000
I BR B R 2w (R Bl ) B B R E R (2015: $1,252,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
BRI A1,5675000c( —FE—RHF : Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of

1,252,0007T) ° Bt © EFIERAR $1,575,000 (2015: $1,252,000) was recognised.

BERS T EMEE1,575000T (==

— R4 1,252,0007T) ©

(©) REREREUERRR

() Accounts receivable that are not impaired

LA Bk B AB AR B2 B RE R FE IR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
TR OATANT - individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
2016 2015
5 F5T
$°000 $'000
FBHEOL B RIE Neither past due nor impaired 12,676 17,002
B ER A1 {E A Less than 1 month past due 1,453 471
BEA1 = 3{E A 1 to 3 months past due 19 324
e ER R RS (R A More than 3 months but less than
1B 21E A 12 months past due 26 4
1,498 836
14,174 17,838
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(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FERER ~ sl RFEMN K@) 14
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Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments (continued)

(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
(Continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2016 and 2015, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

16 WERIREEEY 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2016 2015
Fr T
$°000 $'000
ﬁE/_fEHHT_%’K Deposits with banks 304,246 246,001
TEREES Cash at bank and in hand 34,004 54,636
338,250 300,637
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17

18

Other Payables and Accruals
All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled
within one year except for $32,000 (2015: $257,000) which is

expected to be settled after more than one year.

Deposits Received
All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
except for $154,127,000 (2015: $97,159,000) which is expected to

be settled after more than one year.

REIREE%EE 19 Provision for Long Service Payments
Fr
$’000
R2015F4 811 At 1 April 2015 1,434
AEERHEER Provision made for the year 147
M20165F3H31H At 31 March 2016 1,581

REFECERIED) - ARBABR LR
AFHUENE TREMER - ERLER
TR —ENR - BNSEZEHRET
RROF S MRBFR - RS AEE R
SRl ASBEEHARRERTE - &
B8 A TR R B E A EARBRERH
B o

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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20

RITER — BEH

20 Bank Loan — Secured

RZZ—R"F=A=+—H8  FTERNE At 31 March 2016, the bank loan was repayable as follows:
FEAT ¢

2016 2015
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 200,000 —
1FRBE2FR After 1 year but within 2 years - 200,000
200,000 200,000

RZE—=F+A+tH ARFHE IR
1713 T — 176 $£300,000,0007T B &b & 155
& ZRTRHERN—DRESETETEE
(2BMEE12(0)) B —BE AR RET
RITF R (ZRME15)ME — 2 BIFCNE
HEREH - RZZ—XR"F=A=1+—8"
K8 & # R 1T B 3 A 200,000,000 7T
(ZZ—F 4 : 200,000,0007T) ° ZELE
FENZT—AF+ AR - MARBHE
REZMEEL=F -

ARARMRITHERCERTEARARBNET
FAEMBMRKL B BRI R HRTT e
A YRR ERE—ERNRENRFE ° A
RAERZERE  AARBEMAEEE
ERRIAEER - ARAAEEHEREAE
HEEURm N T RER-T—AF
=ZA=+—B  ARRLEEREMERR
EERBNRE -

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(g)) and a first floating
charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At 31 March 2016,
the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2015: $200,000,000).
The facility agreement will expire in October 2016 and the Company

intends to extend the facilities for at least three additional years.

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the Company were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Company regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As
at 31 March 2016 and 2015, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.
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21 mEHSEAE 21 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-ZT—XNEZA=+—8 AEEHNHE At 31 March 2016, the Group had obligations under finance leases
MERERNERRNT repayable as follows:

2016 2015

REEE RIEHEE HEHEE ®EMEE
ARERE  ORELE  IFEHRE OFEeR

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Tr Fr T Fr
$°000 $000 $'000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 29 29 29 29
15 &B2ER After 1 year but within 2 years 29 29 29 29
2F 1% {B5F RN After 2 years but within 5 years 46 46 75 75
75 75 104 104
104 104 133 133
W BEFIE X KB Less: Total future interest expense - -
HERENEE Present value of lease obligations 104 133
22 FEBUSiH(E 22 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZZE—RF=ZA=+—8 ' BENBAHE At 31 March 2016, the government lease premiums payable was
RGEFEAAR - repayable as follows:
2016 2015
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
1FR(BIETEEA R Within 1 year (amount included in
KIS ERA) other payables and accruals) 57 54
1618825 K After 1 year but within 2 years 60 57
218 {B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 198 189
5F 1% After 5 years 1,722 1,791
1,980 2,037
2,037 2,091
FEN R AT H BT BRI A (B E SRR AR EF Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
AE5E(ZZ—HRHF  5E)HHE - fixed rate of 5% (2015: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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23 Capital and Reserves

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
P/ N/N] The Company
BRA& EfhfREE REER wma
Share Revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
Fr Fx Fr Fr
$000 $000 $000 $000
M20145F481H Balance at 1 April 2014
HY AR 360,000 1,761,266 11,237,238 13,358,504
E R A & Profit and total comprehensive
EEL PN income for the year - — 1,278,143 1,278,143
BN E—BIEEE  Dividends approved in respect of
BERAR S the previous financial year = = (216,000) (216,000)
BRRYTBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAAZE the current financial year — - (216,000) (216,000)
M2015%3H31H  Balance at 31 March 2015
®2015%4H81H and 1 April 2015
B &S ER 360,000 1,761,266 12,083,381 14,204,647
REEm A & Profit and total comprehensive
e NS income for the year — — 861,074 861,074
BN E—BIEEE  Dividends approved in respect of
AR S the previous financial year - - (216,000)  (216,000)
BRAYVBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAAR S the current financial year - - (216,000)  (216,000)
M2016%E3H31H  Balance at 31 March 2016
ML RR 360,000 1,761,266 12,512,455 14,633,721
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23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

iz (b) Share capital
2016 2015
ROEE Fr f&HEE Tt
Number of shares $°000 Number of shares $'000
EERITRHME : Issued and fully paid:
TR Ordinary shares 360,000,000 360,000 360,000,000 360,000

LR E ABRRERATR IR R
8 EEEHEZK’ ARG EEEE—
deh) o R AT TR E
-3 ﬁﬁﬁjt Hﬁﬂ—?—ﬁﬂ EhEes o

B HENEEN AR

5 {1 R I A 6 P B R 0 A
MEBHRBREMNESHRY -
REECERARGES  RERE
EAMMEL  EARBNERRR
BB HEREARDERF - LEE
RN IRA ©

ARSIk
N_E—XNF=Z=A=+—H B
HBCARHEDI) E6EBAR TS E A A
oK F "ET%/“’\H&%E’UF%%%@%E
#1,789,563,0007L (=& — A F :
1,764,774,0007C) ° i?%‘ﬁ@#ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
MEERRESESRRARSER
0.60TL(=ZZE—HF - Hﬁo.eoﬁ) '
& #£216,000,000C( =ZZF — R F :
216,000,00075)(WE£10) o FUEARE
RIREREKER MR ERBAR

o
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The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into ISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,789,563,000
(2015: $1,764,774,000). After the end of the reporting
period the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.60 per
share (2015: $0.60 per share), amounting to $216,000,000
(2015: $216,000,000) (note 10). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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I EREE RZT—RF
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HEAE14%(ZE—RF : 1.4%) -
MIRITEREREBBRBIBITERE

B8 300,041,000c (= —HF ¢

253,355,0007T) °
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23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4%
(2015: 1.4%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total
bank loan of $300,041,000 (2015: $253,355,000).
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair

Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.
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24

Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

2016
ARRAE 1ERE BiB1E BigoE

BEE RERBAE BEBAE  BORE  BONSE FipELES

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2years 5years 5 years
T n Tn Tr Tr T
$000 §000 §000 §000 $000 $000
HfofERZREHER  Other payables and accruals 20,398 20,422 20,390 32 - -
BT Deposits received 204,307 204,307 50,180 69,22 84,835 -
BERERE Obligations under finance leases 104 104 2 29 4 -
FOEN —BHE Bank loan — secured 200,000 201,065 201,085 - - -
ERBITHE Government lease premiums payable 1,980 3477 - 159 4 2,541
426,789 429,075 271,664 69,512 85,358 2,541
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24 BIFEEPEEIEN N AEBE@E 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)
(b) REELEK @) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)

2015
ANRIR 1R el ey Erka
FHE FORSER  RERNE  ESNF BORGE HBiEsF

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5years
T7 77 T7 7 7 T7
$/000 $/000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Efb e REER  Other payables and accruals 24,106 24,130 23873 267 = =
Bl Deposits received 198,312 198,312 101,153 53,380 43,779 -
BEMEAE Obligations under finance leases 133 133 2 29 75 =
HITER—BHEA  Bankloan — seoured 200,000 203,152 2,079 201,073 - -
FERHHE Government lease premiums payable 2,037 3336 = 159 477 2,700
424,588 429,063 127,134 254,898 44,331 2,700
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(©

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.
The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015
BERFI= BERA =
Effective Effective
interest rate F interest rate Tt
% $°000 % $'000
EEMEK Fixed rate borrowings:
R EAIE Obligations under
finance leases - 104 — 133
FERT BT HLE Government lease premiums
payable 5.00 2,037 5.00 2,091
2,141 2,224
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
HITER — A/ Bank loan — secured 1.03 200,000 1.04 200,000
Bk 4a%E Total borrowings 202,141 202,224

Annual Report 2015-2016 3}

113



114

(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Rt %5 FEL B

(©)

frEERAAEBE@

) == [ ez (4m)

@iy BUREDT
R-E—XRE=A=+—8
e EFIREE T2

Z—RF :50)EE bui
i E A A B R TS
72 81 B 4 B 140 ) AR B )
5 LR D h0#9418,0007T
(ZZ—H% : 835,0007T) °

R E S AT F R A K E B
(REERBEHHELLERSE

&) B BB T R (FIR
Bia ) MBI E L o SRS
PR E HRREREE
FEITETAMEENE S
REMNERRNES @ A5ER
&R (FRBEF) M8
RIRZAEEBEF S HH
FEZEELMGE - EES
MRE-_T—AFHRAMNESE
BT o

& s [ By
MR AEEBADH R S ERT
& E AT EAOINERR -

DRE
AEENMAEMITASNEAR
—E-AFR-F-HF=A=t+—H
MAABETEREAZENIET]
i

o
7

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

(d)

Associated International Hotels Limited S\ EEIFEEA R A T

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2015: 50) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $418,000 (2015:
$835,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administrated by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014). In addition to the
mandatory contribution, the Group makes voluntary contribution at
5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income in excess of $30,000
($25,000 prior to June 2014), subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000 ($35,000 prior to June 2014). Mandatory contributions
to the plan vest immediately while voluntary contributions to the plan
vest at the time the employees reach the retirement range, subject
to certain conditions. The staff costs in respect of staff employed by
DTZ for building and property management of iISQUARE are reflected
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $58,000 (2015: $1,000) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions (2015: Nil) had yet to be applied by the Group
at 31 March 2016.

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2016 2015

T T

$°000 $'000

SEES Contracted for - 256
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27 Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2016

2016 2015
ozt T Tt
Note $’000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
— KA — Investment properties 14,533,230 14,127,730
— HtE  MENKRME  — Other properties, plant and equipment 78,407 85,507
14,611,637 14,213,237
LRI EENGILE o d Interest in subsidiaries 31,084 31,084
14,642,721 14,244,321
RBEE Current assets
JEUBERR - 514 MFEREL Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 20,561 24,552
SRR TR Pledged bank deposits 161,791 152,718
Re MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 337,125 298,307
519,477 475,577
REBAE Current liabilities
IRITER — Ak Bank loan — secured 200,000 —
HEth e R B E Other payables and accruals 20,047 24,049
BET & Deposits received 202,826 197,013
RHRS © 25 Provision for long service payments 1,581 1,434
FERTHTE A RIFRIA Amount due to a subsidiary 24,482 20,482
B E R Obligations under finance leases 29 29
RERFEA FTS L Current tax payable 23,015 23,324
471,980 266,331
RBEEFEE Net current assets 47,497 209,246
EEHBERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 14,690,218 14,453,567
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER — Ak Bank loan — secured - 200,000
FET BT HE Government lease premiums payable 1,980 2,037
B & E A Obligations under finance leases 75 104
RIERIBEBE Deferred tax liabilities 54,442 46,779
56,497 248,920
EEFE NET ASSETS 14,633,721 14,204,647
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B R ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 R-—E—-—XRE=8B=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

FE AR BREHE AR TR @) Position at 31 March 2016 (continued)
2016 2015
Bzt Fx T
Note $°000 $'000
BERR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
RRA Share capital 23(0) 360,000 360,000
1 Reserves 14,273,721 13,844,647
RERBE TOTAL EQUITY 14,633,721 14,204,647
EFReN T ARFENA-+BZET Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
AIE o 27 June 2016.
= EE Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EEM Director Director
28 HESARIMGRREZEER 28 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party
EEERR AEER=_ZF—~F=H At 31 March 2016, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
=+ —HOWEESARRRKIEEST DR A ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
REHWEFRARMREBERAT @ MRA and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both
AIEE B MK - EEARISHEEA of which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
HARMBBHRE SRS AR produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
AME AR SIRE controlling party does not produce financial statements available for
public use.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

EEMEEBE=-Z—X~F
ZA=+t—-BLEEEHKRE
MBVEET ~ FERA AR
AR E
NEABHREFLAN - EBLHOL
ELEAYENAERE-F A F=A
=+—BIEEEAR - IR AR R
RAMEITRHER - EERAIR BT
SRR A BRI -

29 Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT Az %
BRI E S EA R A K
Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BEBVIERELER])20125 E2014F A AR FZ it 201651 A1H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016

(BAEGHERDE1RAERT TS

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

201651 H18
1 January 2016

(EBPHFMEERDFE 1SR HEFET A RIAKA 201841 H1H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(BBVISRELERNER(2014F) [T A | 201851 H18

HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

(CEBPHMEELDFE 165 HE
HKFRS 16, Leases

1 January 2018

201951 H1H
1 January 2019

A B T e AT T A R R
RIFELEMBE - BIAAALLMAHE - 57
Wi RS T A G A B R A R B AL E
BRI TRA -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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A FMBHE

Five Year Financial Summary
(%% %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ES Results
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Fr T T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
WA Revenue 455,269 518,878 606,262 644,984 667,214
RENELEEBE Profit from operations
YA A after valuation changes
in investment properties 533,468 2,804,669 1,468,260 1,380,284 964,731
BB Finance costs (2,464) (2,257) (3,048) (2,398) (2,458)
BRBLAT R F Profit before taxation 531,004 2,802,412 1,465,212 1,377,886 962,273
PR Income tax (101,264) (68,832) (82,914) (87,507) (90,904)
ATERRREMN Profit for the year attributable
REEER to equity shareholders of
the Company 429,740 2,733,580 1,382,298 1,290,379 871,369
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EFMEBE Five Year Financial Summary
(LA %% R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Frt Ft Fi Fit Fr
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
TERE Fixed assets 10,156,732 12,526,082 13,469,346 14,318,237 14,724,637
TREVEE,(BE)FE Netcurrent assets/ (liabilities) 170,626 (36,289) 213,755 230,725 71,289

10,327,368 12,489,793 13,683,101 14,548,962 14,795,926

RITER — AW Bank loan — secured (200,000) = (200,000) (200,000) -
JE (BT (B Government lease premiums

payable (2,193) (2,143) (2,001) (2,037) (1,980)
BB T E e Obligations under finance leases (79) (38) ) (104) (75)
EIERIEA E Deferred tax liabilities (25,278) (32,579) (39,675) (47,111) (54,792)
EEFHE NET ASSETS 10,099,808 12,455,033 13,441,331 14,299,710 14,739,079
A&7 Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
B Reserves 9,739,808 12,095,033 13,081,331 13,939,710 14,379,079
ERBE TOTAL EQUITY 10,099,808 12,455,033 13,441,331 14,299,710 14,739,079
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